
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Winnebago County Courthouse  
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor 
 

Thursday, April 28, 2022 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance .......................................... Board Member Dave Kelley 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentation – Carlos Molina, Winnebago County Engineer 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation  
E. Proclamations 

• “Great American Cleanup” Presented to Frank Manzullo, Coordinator Great American 
Cleanup 

• “YWCA Stand Against Racism” Presented to Kelly McNeal, YWCA Community Systems 
Development and Referral Specialist and Livia Bane, YWCA Director, Child Care 
Resource and Referral   

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of March 24, 2022 minutes  
B. Layover of April 14, 2022 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report  

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Cherry Valley Fire Protection District, Compensation:  $4,500 annually/$375 per month 

with certification classes 
1. Karl Ericksen (Reappointment), Cherry Valley, Illinois, May 1, 2022 to April 30, 2025 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  
2. Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment for Transfer from General Fund to 

Special Revenue Funds to be Laid Over      
3. Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment to Change Part-Time Administrative 

Assistant to Full-Time Administrative Assistant to be Laid Over 
4. Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment to Hire an Emergency Services and 

Disaster Agency (ESDA) Coordinator to be Laid Over 
5. Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment Adding Administrative Assistant 

Position in Corrections Administration to be Laid Over 
6. Resolution Awarding Elevator Electrical Services Modernization for the Administration 

Building (2022 CIP) 
7. Resolution to Grant ARP Funding to the AARC at Booker Center for Capital Repairs 

(2022 ARP) 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ........................... Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report   
2. Resolution Abating Property Taxes on Property Located at 3820 Westlake Village Drive, 

Winnebago, Illinois Specifically Identified as Property Index Number 09-25-376-013 
and Commonly Known as Westlake Village Golf Course 
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Reliance Standard 

to Provide Term Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD & D) 
Insurance 

3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Reliance Standard 
for Voluntary Life Insurance 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. (22-010) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with the State of Illinois to Install Street 

Lights at Weldon Road and US Business 20 (Section 22-00704-00-TL)  
Cost:  $12,000 (to be reimbursed by the State)  C.B. District:  1 

3. (22-011) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the 2022 Pavement Patching 
Program (Section 22-00000-01-GM)  
Cost:  $205,428      C.B. District:  7, 8, 11 & 20 
($16,870 to be reimbursed by the City of Rockford) 

4. (22-012) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for Latham Road Resurfacing from 
Meridian Road to Owen Center Road and Appropriating Rebuild Illinois Funds  



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

(Section 21-00700-00-RS)  
Cost:  $1,061,151.55     C.B. District:  1 & 5 

5. (22-013) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for Latham Road & Bell School Road 
Pipe Culvert Replacements (Section 22-00705-00-DR)  
(Bid Opening April 18, 2022 at 10:16 A.M. – To Be Distributed)  
Cost:  $188,626.54     C.B. District:  1, 5, 8 & 11 

6. (22-014) Resolution Authorizing a Local Public Agency Agreement for Federal 
Participation for Two Box Culvert Replacements on Gleasman Road and for 
Appropriating the Local Share of Funds (Section 17-00654-00-BR) 
County Cost:  $336,000     C.B. District:  1 & 3 
Federal Cost:  $742,000 

7. (22-015) Resolution Authorizing an Engineering Services Agreement with Willett 
Hofmann & Associates, Inc. to Provide Construction Engineering Services for the 
Replacement of Two Box Culverts on Gleasman Road (Section 17-00654-00-BR)  
Cost:  $148,495      C.B. District:  1 & 3 

8. (22-016) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement between the County of   Winnebago 
and the City of Rockford for Pavement Repairs on Bell School Road  
(Section 22-00000-01-GM) 
Cost:  $16,870 (To be reimbursed by the CoR)  C.B. District:  11 

9. (22-017) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement between the County of Winnebago and 
the Village of Pecatonica for Improvements to Pecatonica Road and the Jurisdictional 
Transfer of a Section of Pecatonica Road (CH-18)  
Cost:  $00.00 (N/A At this time)    C.B. District:  1  
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
Appointments 
A. Four Rivers Sanitation Authority, Compensation:  $6,000 per year 

1.   Ginger Haas (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 1, 2022 to April 30, 2025 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet) 

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, May 12, 2022   



 

  
 

Awards,  
Presentations,  

Public Hearings,  
Public Participation & 

Proclamations 

 
 







 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 





















 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 28, 2022 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee on the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District Board 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Karl Ericksen, Rockford, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 22 – May 25  
 

 

 Cherry Valley Fire Protection District  

Location: 4919 Blackhawk Road, Cherry Valley, IL  61109 

Service 
Description: 

Protect the lives and property of our community through emergency services and risk 
reduction for the Village of Cherry Valley and unincorporated areas of Winnebago and 
Boone Counties, encompasses approximately 25 square miles. https://www.cvfpd.com/ 

Board 
Composition: 

Three (3) trustees appointed to three (3) year terms by the County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board  

Compensation: $4,500.00 annually / $375.00 per month with certification classes 

Bond: $2,000 

Attorney: Karl Ottosen 

Meetings: Second Thursday of each month 5:15 p.m. 

Origin of 
Entity: Fire Protection District At (70 ILCS 705/1)  

Property 
Tax/Funding: District levies an annual property tax, charges for services and replacement tax. 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution 

Plans: 
If applicable  

https://www.cvfpd.com/
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=872&ChapterID=15




 
 

 
Karl J. Ericksen 815.378.9157 
3718 Gnarl Tree Lane, Cherry Valley, IL 61016 kericksen@icloud.com 
 
Professional Profile 
 
Over 14 years of experience with the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District, as well as 10+ years 
of experience with other fire departments and agencies through instructing and committees.  
Approximately 2 years as Fire Department Director of Training.  Current profession offers day-
to-day involvement with tasks and responsibilities associated with operating a well-respected, 
manufacturing business, locally owned. 
 

• Respected Leader amongst the ranks 
of Fire Fighters and Officers 

• Ability to perform and execute under 
high stress situations  

• Dedicated to Training and Education  

• Dedicated to the profession and the 
people we served 

• Continuous Improvement 
• Countless hours dedicated to teaching 

and training 

Professional Experience 
 
ROCKFORM CARBIDE MANUFACTURING, INC., Rockford, IL 1997 – Current 

• 1997 – 1999: General Clerk 
o Customer communication, shipping & receiving, general sales 

 
• 1999 – 2003:  Sales Representative 

o Managed sales and growth for several product lines 
 

• 2003 – 2008:  Operations Manager 
o Responsible for the day to day operations company wide, 8-10 employees, 

answered directly to owners 
 

• 2008 – 2014:  Sales Manager 
o Responsible for all sales and marketing that relates to the company worldwide 

 
• 2014 – Current:  Vice President & Owner 

o Day-to-day operations of entire company 
 

CHERRY VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, Cherry Valley, IL 1992 – Current 
• 1992 – 1995:  Junior Firefighter 

o Attend trainings and events to learn the “trade” 
 
• 1995 – 2003: Firefighter 

o Typical firefighter duties, including, but not limited to, attending weekly 
trainings, outside classes and education, meetings, emergency calls, 
association activities, and public events 

• 2003 – 2005: Director of Training 
o Responsible for training, training grounds and equipment, and training 

records for the entire department.  Organized weekly training schedules, 
requirements and new recruit induction training classes. 



Karl J.  Ericksen • 815.378.9157 • kericksen@icloud.com 
 

 
 

• 2014 – 2015: Fire Commissioner 
o Board member responsible for the hiring, promotions, discipline and 

termination of the full time Cherry Valley Fire Fighters 
• 2015 – Present: Trustee 

o Board member responsible for the budget and policy of the district.  Active in 
Fire District functions, including open houses, promotional ceremonies, and 
other activities involving the community.    

 
 
Professional Achievements 
 

• 2 Time recipient of the Firefighter of the Year Award 
• Recipient of Department Commendation for Successful Rescue in House Fire 
• Certified Instructor I, Fire Fighter II, SCUBA, Open Water Rescue, EMT-B 
• Respected leader amongst the ranks for Firefighters and Officers 
• Past President of the Cherry Valley Firefighters Association 
• Founding member of the Regional Recruit Academy to assist in the induction training of 

new firefighters for local volunteer fire departments 
 
Education 
 
Northern Illinois University, DeKalb, IL 

• 3 Years completed 
 
References 
 

• References are available upon request. 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 
 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 21, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment for Transfer 

from General Fund to Special Revenue Funds 
County Code:       Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
   
Board Meeting Date:    April 28, 2022 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                Appropriation Amount:  $  
If not, explain funding source:     Fund Balance 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: various, see attached             Budget Impact:   $ 0 

 
Background Information: This amendment is needed to permanently transfer funds from the 

General Fund to special revenue funds to alleviate the need for the 
General Fund to advance cash resources annually to these funds.  
Special revenue funds receiving a transfer are Victim Impact Panel 
Fee Fund, Deferred Prosecution Program Fund, Circuit Court Grants 
Fund and Law Library Fund.  Future Finance and budget policy will 
not allow for a special revenue fund to expend more funds than 
received or is receivable through various revenue sources. 

  
 
Recommendation:  Department Agrees 
  
Contract/Agreement:  Not Applicable 
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable 
 
 

        



1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Apr 21, 2022 
 Lay Over: Apr 28, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 12, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, at the end of FY2021, the County General Fund has advanced funds to 
several special revenue funds and has a general fund balance exceeding the minimum County 
policy balance.  The County will permanently transfer funds from the general fund to special 
revenue funds that do not have a revenue source that will support the fund in the future and 
relieve the negative cash balance.  Funds receiving the transfer will be Victim Impact Panel Fee 
Fund ($9,910.), Deferred Prosecution Program Fund ($153,067), Circuit Court Grant Fund 
($11,141) and Law Library Fund ($180,350). 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-012 Fund Balance Transfer. 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 



2 
 

 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/21/2022
Fund Balance Transfers Dave Rickert

Various

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

13500 49110 Transfer to Other Funds $32,000 $0 $32,000 $354,468 $386,468

Revenue
40900 39110 Transfer from Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($9,910) ($9,910)
42000 39110 Transfer from Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($153,067) ($153,067)
60900 39110 Transfer from Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($11,141) ($11,141)
42600 39110 Transfer from Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($180,350) ($180,350)

$0.00
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

N/A

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$0 

Several special revenue funds have not generated enough revenue to support their operation.  At the end of FY2021, the County 
General Fund balance exceeded the fund balance policy minimum.  This amendment will permanently transfer funds from the 
General Fund to Victim Impact Panel Fee Fund, Deferred Prosecution Program Fund, Circuit Court Grants Fund and Law Library 
Fund.  

2022-012

VariousDEPT. BUDGET NO.



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
Prepared By:   Ann Johns 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 21, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment to change 

part-time admin assistant to full-time admin assistant. 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    April 28, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $11,539 
If not, explain funding source:   Fund Balance 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   14500       Budget Impact:   $11,539 
 
Background Information:  
The Purchasing Director is converting their part-time administrative assistant to a full-time 
position. This is due in part to an increase in duties in the admin assistant’s role, which requires 
the employee to be in a full time role. 
 
Recommendation:   Administration agrees  
 
Contract/Agreement:  Not required 
 
Legal Review:    Not required    
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Apr 21, 2022 
 Lay Over: Apr 28, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 12, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
 
 WHEREAS, The Purchasing Department has a part-time Administrative Assistant that 
they would like to change into a full-time Administrative Assistant. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-013 Purchasing Admin Assistant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   Respectfully Submitted,                                                                  
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/14/2021
Purchasing Ann Johns

0001

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

14500 41110 Regular Salaries $194,466 $0 $194,466 $7,000 $201,466
13500 41211/13501 Health Insurance $1,931,609 $0 $1,931,609 $3,388 $1,934,997
14500 41221 Life Insurance $0 $0 $0 $13 $13
49300 41231 IMRF $5,731,300 $0 $5,731,300 $602 $5,731,902
49200 41241 FICA/Medicare $4,849,481 $0 $4,849,481 $536 $4,850,017

Revenue
$0

$11,539
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

DEPARTMENT:
FUND#:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

$11,539 

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

2022-013

14500DEPT. BUDGET NO.

Purchasing is looking to make a current part-time Administrative Assistant into a full-time position as the purchasing director has 
added more duties to the position which require it to be full time. 

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Fund Balance



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 21, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment to hire an 

Emergency Services and Disaster Agency (ESDA) Coordinator  
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    April 28, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $7,925 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   22000       Budget Impact:   $7,925 
 
Background Information:  
  
The Sheriff’s Department is requesting a budget amendment to hire an Emergency Services and 
Disaster Agency (ESDA) Coordinator.  There was an IGA with the City of Rockford in 2020 
making the ESDA Coordinator an employee of the City of Rockford Fire Department.  Per the 
IGA, the County pays the City of Rockford $122,480 per year for half of the cost of the 
Coordinator’s salary and benefits.  The County did not feel we were getting the value of the 
position at $122,480/year.  As a County employee, the ESDA Coordinator will be focused on 
meeting the needs of the County Community first.  Budget amendment covers the period of 
May 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022. The job description for the position is attached. The 
ESDA Coordinator salary cost for fiscal year 2022 will be covered by canceling the contract with 
the City of Rockford. The $7,925 covers Life Insurance, IMRF, FICA and Medicare.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff Recommends   
 
Legal Review:    Not Applicable   
 
Follow-Up:  Not Applicable 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Apr 21, 2022 
 Lay Over: Apr 28, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 12, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has decided to hire a fulltime ESDA Coordinator rather 
than renew our IGA with the City of Rockford who was providing our current ESDA Coordinator. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-010 ESDA Coordinator. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/8/2022
Sheriff's Department Gary Caruana

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

22000 41110 Regular Salaries $0 $0 $0 $36,576 $36,576
13500 41211/13502 Health Insurance $1,580,019 $0 $1,580,019 $3,388 $1,583,407
22000 41221 Life Insurance $0 $0 $0 $13 $13
49300 41231 IMRF $5,731,300 $0 $5,731,300 $1,773 $5,733,073
49200 41241 FICA/Medicare $4,849,481 $0 $4,849,481 $2,751 $4,852,232
22000 43190 Other Professional Services $122,480 $0 $122,480 ($36,576) $85,904

Revenue
$0

$7,925
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

DEPARTMENT:
FUND#:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

$7,925 

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

DEPT. BUDGET NO.

The Sheriff’s Department is requesting a budget amendment to hire an Emergency Services and Disaster Agency (ESDA) 
Coordinator.  There was an IGA with the City of Rockford in 2020 making the ESDA Coordinator an employee of the City of 
Rockford Fire Department.  Per the IGA, the County pays the City of Rockford $122,480 per year for half of the cost of the 
Coordinator’s salary and benefits.  The County did not feel we were getting the value of the position at $122,480/year.  As a 
County employee, the ESDA Coordinator will be focused on meeting the needs of the County Community first.  Budget 
amendment covers the period of May 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022. The job description for the position is attached.

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Fund Balance



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Position Summary: 
 
The Coordinator shall have responsibility for the organization, administration, training and operation 
of Winnebago County’s emergency management program. This will involve interaction with other 
County departments, local, state and federal agencies, and regional planning committees along with 
fire and law enforcement agencies to coordinate planning, preparedness, mitigation, response and 
recovery functions. 
 
Reporting Relationship: 
 
 The Emergency Services and Disaster Agency (ESDA) Coordinator reports to the Sheriff. 

 
Duties and Responsibilities: 

 
1. Provides overall direction, leadership, and coordination for the operation of the Office of 

Emergency Management, its staff, and its volunteers. Is also responsible for the department 
annual budget and fiscal operation. 
 

2. Serves as a member of the agency’s Command Staff and is capable of functioning in any 
Command or General Staff position. 
 

3. Maintains the County’s all-hazards Emergency Operations Plan in accordance with the 
guidelines set forth in the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act (20 ILCS 3305) and its 
associated administrative rules. 
 

4. Coordinates the activities of elected officials and department heads in order to achieve 
effective planning and coordination during the response and recovery phases of a disaster 
event. 
 

5. Serves as a representative for the county before public and legislative bodies, conferences, 
and all other emergency management related functions. 
 

6. Works with various municipalities, within Winnebago County to assist in the development of an 
all-hazards emergency operations plan that is compatible with County, State and Federal 

NON-BARGAINING 
UNIT 

 

GRADE: 
 

Revision Date: 
 

Job Title:      Emergency Services and Disaster Agency (ESDA) Coordinator 
Department:    Sheriff    
  



planning guidelines. 
 

7. Plans and coordinates periodic disaster exercises in accordance with the requirements of the 
Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act (20 ILCS 3305) and its associated administrative 
rules along with the requirements of the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program 
(HSEEP). 
 

8. Performs all duties in accordance with County policies and procedures. 
 

9. Performs other duties as required or assigned. 
 

10. Regular attendance is required, overtime as needed/scheduled. 
 
Education and Experience: 
 

1. A degree from an accredited college or university with five years of direct emergency 
management managerial experience is required. 
 

2. Must have completed the Illinois Professional Emergency Manager (IPEM) certification. 
 
Skills and Abilities: 
 

1. This position requires a comprehensive knowledge of emergency management principles and 
practices. 
 

2. The Coordinator must have an intimate working knowledge of the principals of incident 
management and has completed ICS-300 & 400 level training. 

 
3. Position entails policy formulation and the ability to engage in long-term planning. 

 
4. Proven interpersonal communication skills are required for this position. The success of the 

Director will depend largely on the development of professional relationships with various 
governmental and non-governmental organizations and the general public. 
 

5. High-level conflict management skills are a must. 
 
Physical Requirements: 
See attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 21, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for the Approval of Budget Amendment adding 

Administrative Asst. Position in Corrections Administration 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    April 28, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $28,168 
If not, explain funding source:   Sheriff’s Inmate Commissary Account 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   40115          Budget Impact:   $0 
 
Background Information:  
  
The Sheriff’s Department is requesting a budget amendment to hire an 
Administrative Assistant for Corrections Administration.  Duties will include 
scanning documents, PREA training, assisting citizens, inmate medical billing, 
keeping jail and body camera stats and other administrative duties as assigned.  
Funding for this position will be from the Sheriff’s Inmate Commissary Account.  
Budget amendment covers the period of May 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022.  
 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Apr 21, 2022 
 Lay Over: Apr 28, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 12, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, The Winnebago County Sheriff is in need of a new Administrative Assistant at 
the Winnebago County Jail. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-010 Jail Admin Assistant. 
. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 



2 
 

 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/8/2022
Sheriff's Department Gary Caruana

0101

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

40115 41110 Regular Salaries $12,075,745 $0 $12,075,745 $22,000 $12,097,745
40100 41211/13502 Health Insurance $4,906,268 $0 $4,906,268 $3,388 $4,909,656
40115 41221 Life Insurance $5,760 $0 $5,760 $13 $5,773
49300 41231 IMRF $5,731,300 $0 $5,731,300 $1,085 $5,732,385
49200 41241 FICA/Medicare $4,849,481 $0 $4,849,481 $1,683 $4,851,164

Revenue
45100 Sheriff's Commissary Account $0 ($28,169)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Inmate Commissary Accounty

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

2022-010

40115DEPT. BUDGET NO.

Budget Amendment is requested to add an Administrative Asst. position for Corrections Adminisration.  Duties will include 
scanning documents, PREA training, assisting citizens, inmate medical billing, keeping jail and body camera stats and other 
Administrative Duties as assigned.  The Budget Amendment covers the period of May 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022.  
Funding for this position will be from the Sheriff's Inmate Commissary Account.

DEPARTMENT:
FUND#:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

$0 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Position Summary: 
 
The Administrative Assistant Corrections is responsible for the scanning, filing and converting of 
paper documents into electronic records.  Performs various clerical tasks including, database 
management, report writing and medical claims review.  
 
Reporting Relationship: 
 
 
Duties and Responsibilities: 
 

1. Prepares documents for scanning removing any staples, paperclips and straightens pages 
as needed.    
 

2. Scans various documents converting them to digital copies and ensures satisfactory image 
quality and naming convention format. 

 
3. Maintains employee-training files ensuring trainings logs are accurate and up to date. 

 
4. Serves as the department’s initial point of contact and greets both the public and 

employees.  
 

5. Identifies incidents that require a Use of Force Follow-up report and enters incident 
numbers to completed officer’s reports keying required fields into Offender Track. 
 

6. Runs various reports from Offender Track.  
 

7. Ensures proper inmate medical billing validating medical invoice information including dates 
of service and form accuracy.  Distributes proper forms if needed.  

 
8. Attends monthly International Overdose Awareness Meeting and maintains Winnebago 

County Health Department Narcan tracking forms. 
 

9. Performs all duties in accordance with County policies and procedures. 
 

NON-BARGAINING 

 
GRADE: 

 

Revision Date: 
04/08/2022 

Job Title:    Administrative Assistant Corrections 
Department:   Corrections 
 

 

         

 

 

 



10. Performs other duties as assigned. 
 

11. Regular attendance is required. 
 
Education and Experience: 
 

 High School Diploma or equivalent.  Associates Degree preferred. 
 

 Previous experience with database systems preferred. 
 
Skills and Abilities: 

 
 Ability to type 40 words per minute accurately. 

 
 Knowledge of all related computer applications (Microsoft Office Suite) 

 
 Knowledge of current business office methods, practices, machines and equipment. 

 
 Requires excellent verbal and written communication skills. 

 
 Requires the ability to prepare a complete and accurate/detailed records and reports. 

 
 Requires ability to establish and maintain satisfactory working relationships with fellow 

employees and the public. 
 

Physical Requirements: 
 

 See attached Essential Functions 
 
 
 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Purchasing Department for Facilities  

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    April 21, 2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding Elevator Electrical Services Modernization for the 
Administration Building 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  April 28, 2022 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes -  CIP Funded                    Appropriation Amount:    $63,525.00 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   82200-46430-C2102           Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   
In May 2021, the Winnebago County board passed a Capital Improvement Plan, which included 
modernizing the two elevators in the County Administration Building.  Many aspects of the 
elevators and electrical components are obsolete, or not in code compliance.    
 
Exhibit A is a detail quote of all electrical requirements needed before the elevators can be 
upgraded by the Schumacher Elevator Company.  The Board approved their proposal last month.  
 
The electrical costs for both elevators is $60,500 plus a small 5% contingency ($3,025) for a total 
of $63,525   

NOTE:  Any contingency funds will only be allowed, if Shawn Franks approves, in advance and the 
PO is revised with a County Change Order.   

Recommendation:   Shawn Franks - Facilities Engineer 
 
Contract/Agreement:    See Exhibit A for details  
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up:   Purchasing Department will obtain the Chairman’s signature on the vendor’s quote 
and issue a County Purchase Order to Wilson Electric Co. 



County Board: 4/28/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

Resolution Awarding Elevator Electrical Services Modernization for the 
Administration Building 

 
 WHEREAS, the County Administration Building is owned and operated by the County 

of Winnebago, who is also responsible for the maintenance of the building; and 
 
WHEREAS, in May 2021, Winnebago County Board passed a Capital Improvement Plan 

which included modernizing the two elevators in the County Administration Building; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned electrical service and 
recommends awarding agreements; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to issue, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, a Purchase Order to WILSON ELECTRIC CO., 113 SOUTH MADISON STREET, 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61104, in the dollar amount of up to SIXTY THREE THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($63,525.00). 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Facilities Engineer, Director of 
Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
         FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



Phone: (815) 963-0431   

   Fax: (815) 963-0435            Rockford, Illinois 61104 

 Skilled and responsible electrical contractors since 1919  www:wilsonelectricco.com 

01/07/2022 
Winnebago County Facilities 

Reference: Admin building elevator upgrade 
Quote # FT-WEC-2022002 

Shawn, 
Thank you for the opportunity to quote the above referenced project. We propose to 

furnish all necessary labor, equipment, materials, and supervision to complete the scope of work 
that is outlined below. 

SCOPE OF WORK ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR: 
• Furnish and install new elevator pit lights
• Reconfigure electrical piping in pit to meet new codes
• Furnish and install new lights in mechanical room to meet code requirements
• Furnish and install new GFI’s in mechanical room to meet code requirements
• Furnish and install (2) new elevator disconnects
• Provide temp power for elevator installation
• Relocate telephone line within mechanical room
• Reconfigure generator signal within mechanical room to new elevator disconnects
• Install new pipe for smoke detectors required in elevator mechanical room
• Furnish and install new light fixtures within vestibules to meet code requirements
• Provide engineered drawings for project

ASSUMPTIONS / CLARIFICATIONS: 

NOTICE:  THIS PROPOSAL IS CONTINGENT ON A LACK OF IMPACT BY THE CORONAVIRUS 
NATIONAL EMERGENCY. Given the existence of the coronavirus pandemic, Wilson Electric Co will use 
its best efforts to staff and supply this project to be able to hit the scheduled completion date but reserves its 
right to seek an excusable extension of time if Wilson Electric Co or its subcontractors and suppliers are 
unable to maintain planned crew sizes due to the illness, supply shortages or governmental restraints on 
business, travel and/or assembly.  To the extent that the project is suspended pursuant to the terms of the 
proposed [Contract/Subcontract], we intend to seek additional costs associated with the suspension. 

Many Wilson Electric partners have advised that until further notice they reserve the right to amend the 
delivery date, the price, the scope, or quantity of supply and/or other terms and conditions set out in their 
offer or quotation to the extent affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Be advised that Wilson Electric 
considers any COVID-19 related changes imposed by manufacturers as outside its reasonable control and 
subject to Force Majeure provisions, thus Wilson may adjust the quoted amount post award. 

EXHIBIT A

 113 South Madison Street



 
Phone: (815) 963-0431                                                                                            113 South Madison Street
                                                                                  
   Fax: (815) 963-0435                                                                                                               Rockford, Illinois 61104                                                                           

             
 

          
 Skilled and responsible electrical contractors since 1919        www:wilsonelectricco.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• NO WORK OUTSIDE OF SCOPE LISTED ABOVE IS INCLUDED IN THIS QUOTE 
• Unforeseen existing conditions or changes to original scope of work will be evaluated on 

a T & M basis 
• All work to be performed during normal working hours 7am-3:30pm 
• All work will be concurrent and if breaks in workflow are incurred the cost of 

remobilizing will be on a T&M basis and discussed prior to resuming work 
• Taxes are not included 
• Permit cost are NOT included 
• Utility fees are NOT included 
• Quote Valid for 15 days 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TOTAL COST LABOR AND MATERIALS                                                            $ 60,500.00 
 
CUSTOMER APPROVAL:  __________________________________________ 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to quote this project.   
 
Sincerely: 

 
Francesco Tarara 
Project Manager | Estimator 
Wilson Electric Co.  
113 S. Madison St. Rockford IL 61004 
ftarara@wilsonelectricco.com 
M: 815-222-1760 | O: 815-847-6269 | F: 815-963-0436  
 

                                                                

mailto:bmarcum@wilsonelectricco.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By: Finance 

Committee: Finance Committee 

Committee Date: April 21, 2022 

Resolution Title: Resolution to Grant ARP Funding to the AARC at Booker Center for Capital Repairs 

County Code: Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date: April 28, 2022 

 
 

Was item budgeted? No Appropriation Amount:  $134,080 

Baker-Tilly ARP Compliance Review:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300 46320 Budget Impact:   None - using ARP funds 

 
 

Background Information: 
The Booker T Washington Center is a historical city landmark and is in need of capital repairs to it’s current 
building. The AARC at Booker provides an environment that promotes the quality of life, values, and 
welfare of the underserved people of our community through education, art, recreational and cultural 
programs, and to promote learning and sharing within the greater multicultural community. The county 
will be paying no more than $134,080 which is one-third of the costs of the project. The other funds will 
becoming from grants and the City of Rockford has agreed to pay one-third of the costs as well. 

 
 

Recommendation:  The County’s ARP Phase 4 plan is for Neighborhood Improvements. This project 
would fall under that plan and is applicable under the federal government’s ARP guidelines. This project is 
recommended by staff. 

 
 

Baker Tilly:  Submitted for Baker Tilly approval. If project is not green lighted then ARP revenue offset will 
         be used. 

 
 



1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Apr 21, 2022 
 Lay Over: Apr 28, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 12, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
          

RESOLUTION TO GRANT AARC AT BOOKER ARP FUNDS FOR CAPITAL REPAIRS 
  
             WHEREAS, The AARC at Booker provides an environment that promotes the quality of 
life, values, and welfare of the underserved people of our community through education, art, 
recreational and cultural programs, and to promote learning and sharing within the greater 
multicultural community, and 
 
            WHEREAS, The Booker T Washington Center is a city historical landmark that is in need 
of capital repairs. 
 
             WHEREAS, The Booker T Washington Center is requesting $134,080 from the County in 
ARP funds to help with these repairs. 
 
             WHEREAS, The County’s ARP Phase 4 Plan is dedicated to Neighborhood Improvements 
such as this project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County of Winnebago, Illinois will grant $134,080 (One Hundred and Thirty-four 
Thousand and Eighty Dollars) to African-American Resource Center at Booker from ARP to 
support their capital improvement project related to roof repairs and mold remediation. 
 
            BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon it’s adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 





 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, April 18, 2022 
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: buildingdept@wincoil.us      

Document Title:  Resolution Abating Property Taxes On Property Located At 3820 Westlake 
Drive Winnebago, Illinois, Specifically Identified As Property Code Number 
09-25-376-013 And Commonly Known As Westlake Village Golf Course    

County Code: NA 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, April 28, 2022  
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $ 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 

Westlake Village Development (i.e. golf course) was established March 9, 1995. The golf 
course at Westlake Village has been closed and vacant since 2018, and is being purchased by Lynx 
Golf Course to renovate and re-establish the use by August 1st of 2022. This project is planned to 
have several phases of implementation in restoring the golf course and grounds, as well as 
renovating the club house. This project has a job expectation of 11.5 full-time equivalent 
positions (8 full-time, 7 part-time). The applicant is currently conversing this request with other 
taxing bodies, however since this is in Unincorporated Winnebago County, the County has 
become the lead agent in this project. The proposed tax abatement will be a 10 year stepped 
approach; Year 1 at 100%, Year 2 at 95%, Year 3 at 90%, Year 4 at 85%, Year 5 at 75%, Year 6 at 
65%, Year 7 at 55%, Year 8 at 45%, Year 9 at 35%, Year 10 at 25%. There will be a small portion 
of sales tax dollars generated from this as well. 
 
Recommendation:  
Administration supports development projects of existing properties to assist in the 
stabilization/increase of the Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) and job growth. In addition this 
project will also include sales tax dollars generated from the pro shop, gaming, food and 
beverages. Finally, considering the current housing shortage in Winnebago County, staff is also 
hopeful that this project will encourage more new homes to be built in the vacant lots at 
Westlake Village, which will then result in the increasing of the tax base.  
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
County staff can provide updates of the project as requested. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department | 404 Elm St, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101  
www.wincoil.us  |  Phone: (815) 319- 4350  |  Fax: (815) 319-4351  |  Email: buildingdept@wincoil.us 

Memorandum 
Date: Friday, April 1, 2022 
From: Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
Re: Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village 
 
 
The below abatement schedule is proposed for Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village. 
 

Entity Address & PIN(s) 
Assessment Year 

(anticipated) 

 
1st Year of Abatement 

(anticipated) 

Lynx Golf Course, LLC 

3820 Westlake 
Village Dr. 

09-25-376-013 
2022 2023 taxes 

The County of Winnebago property taxes on the increased assessment shall be abated for ten (10) years 
as follows: 
 

Current Year EAV = Abated EAV x 1.00 x County Portion of Property Taxes 
(2022 assessment year) 

 
Tax Abatement Schedule 

Year 1 (2022) = 100% 
Year 2 (2023) = 95% 
Year 3 (2024) = 90% 
Year 4 (2025) = 85% 
Year 5 (2026) = 75% 
Year 6 (2027) = 65% 
Year 7 (2028) = 55% 
Year 8 (2029) = 45% 
Year 9 (2030) = 35% 

Year 10 (2031) = 25% 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:buildingdept@wincoil.us


Sponsored by:  Fred Wescott        County Board Meeting April 28, 2022 
 
 RESOLUTION  
 OF 
 THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2022 CR ______ 
 

RESOLUTION ABATING PROPERTY TAXES ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT  
 3820 WESTLAKE VILLAGE DRIVE, WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS SPECIFICALLY 
IDENTIFIED AS PROPERTY INDEX NUMBER 09-25-376-013 AND COMMONLY 

KNOWN AS WESTLAKE VILLAGE GOLF COURSE  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165 the County of Winnebago, Illinois may, 
after a determination of the assessed valuation of its property, order the County Clerk to abate a 
portion of its taxes on the property of any commercial or industrial firm currently located within 
the County; and 
 

WHEREAS, such abatement shall not exceed a period of ten (10) years; and 
 

WHEREAS, the total aggregate amount of abated taxes for all taxing districts within the 
County may not exceed $4,000,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, Lynx Golf Course, LLC will be re-establishing the Golf Course at Westlake 
Village in Winnebago County, Illinois and is investing approximately $800,000 in re-opening 
and renovating of the golf course located at 3820 Westlake Dr., Winnebago, Illinois, specifically 
identified as property index number 09-25-376-013 (Subject Property), by restoring the 
approximate 131-acre property back to an active golf course and renovating the buildings that 
have not been in use since 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, Lynx Golf Course, LLC has requested a real estate tax abatement for a 
period of ten (10) years based on a stepped down percentage schedule of the assessed value; and 
 

WHEREAS, Lynx Golf Course, LLC will create an estimated 11.5 new full-time 
equivalent jobs with this expansion and generate some sales tax dollars; and 
 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the citizens of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, and enhance the economic development within the County, to grant a real estate tax 
abatement on the subject property. The establishment of Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village 
would alter the Farmland Assessment to an Open Space Assessment, which will result in a much 
higher equalized assessed value for all taxing bodies.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County of Winnebago hereby order the Winnebago County Clerk to 
abate, with a base assessment year of 2022 the County’s share of the property taxes to be levied 



Page 2 of 3 
 

against the property identified by property index number 09-25-376-013 by the following 
percentages: 

 

 

Year Taxes From Payable In Abatement %
One (1) 2022 2023 100%
Two (2) 2023 2024 95%
Three (3) 2024 2025 90%
Four (4) 2025 2026 85%
Five (5) 2026 2027 75%
Six (6) 2027 2028 65%
Seven (7) 2028 2029 55%
Eight (8) 2029 2030 45%
Nine (9) 2030 2031 35%
Ten (10) 2031 2032 25%

Schedule

  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in recognition of the Tax Abatement, Lynx Golf 
Course, LLC shall not protest the assessed value of the Subject Property or Project during the life 
of this Abatement without the consent of the County. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Lynx Golf Course, LLC ceases doing 
business on the property identified by property index number 09-25-376-013 in the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, the abatement period shall end, and the abatement of the County of 
Winnebago’s portion of real estate property taxes set forth in this Resolution shall cease. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Clerk, 
Winnebago County Administrator, Winnebago County Auditor, the Winnebago County Director 
of the Supervisor of Assessment’s Office, and the Winnebago County Director of Regional 
Planning and Economic Development Department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

FRED WESCOTT, CHAIRMAN  FRED WESCOTT, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN  DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN SWEENEY  JOHN SWEENEY 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________, 2022. 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Winnebago County  
General Economic Development Project Form 

 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 
Organization / Business Name:  

Contact Person (1) :  Position:  

Phone #: (            )              -              E-mail:                                                      @ 

Contact Person (2):  Position:  

Phone #: (            )              -              E-mail:                                                      @ 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Location / Address:  

Parcel 
Identification 
Number(s) 
PIN(s): 

___ ___ - ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ - ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ 

 Type of Development: Existing  
Square Footage (SF): 

Proposed / Additional 
Square Footage (SF): 

TOTAL  
SQUARE FOOTAGE (SF): 

New Construction SF SF SF 

Addition / Expansion SF SF SF 

Remodel SF SF SF 

Other SF SF SF 

If other, 
explain:  

Project Timeframe (Estimated): 

Start Date:  End Date:  

Jobs 

 Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) #: 

Part-Time Equivalent 
(PTE) #: Temporary #: TOTAL #: 

Construction 
Jobs:     

Newly 
Created Jobs:     

Retained 
Jobs:     

TOTAL #:     

 

 

 

 



Total Project Cost: $ 

INVESTMENT 
NAME(S) of PARTICIPATING PARTNERS Amount ($) Status Date Type (s) of Funding / Involvement 
Developer: 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 
Requested 

Anticipated 
Approved 

  

Municipality: 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Tax Body (1): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Tax Body (2): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Tax Body (3): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Other (1): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Other (2): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Requested Project Gap Assistance from the County? 
County: 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ Requested   

 



Winnebago County  
General Economic Development Project Form 

 

Summary / Description of Project: 
 

Expected 
Outcomes:  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Applicant  Name Printed Applicant Signature Date 
** By signing this application, I hereby attest that this application and any accompanying documents are true, 

accurate, and correct to the best of my understating. ** 
 

leatstev
Highlight



COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Project Report for: 
Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village 

Tax Abatement 

 
Friday, April 1, 2022  [ 1 / 3 ] 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
County Board District(s) #: 1 
 

County Board Member: Aaron Booker 
 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Organization Applicant:  Lynx Golf Course 
 
Applicant Contact (Point) Person: 
Steve Leathers 
 
 

Position: Owner/Operator 
 
Phone #: (815) 218-6661 
 
Email: lynxgolfcourse@gmail.com  

PROJECT INFORMATION 
Project Location Address: 
3820 Westlake Village Dr. 
Winnebago, IL 61088 
 
 
Jurisdiction: 
Unincorporated Winnebago County  

PIN: 09-25-376-013 
 
Website: N/A 
 
Tax Abatement Request: 10 years tiered 
approach. 
Overall average is 67% abatement for the 10 
years 
 
County Investment for Job Growth: 
$25,000 Investment / 11.5 FTE Jobs 
                          = ~ $2,175 / Job 
**(abatement only, doesn’t account for sale tax 
dollar generation) 

 

Project Summary:  

                Steve Leathers of Lynx Golf Course is working on purchasing the golf course at Westlake Village, 

in Unincorporated Winnebago County. He is requesting assistance from the County with the $800,000 

investment for the project in the form of a tax abatement for 10 years at a tiered rate that would equal 

approximately 67% (~$25,000) of the County’s portion of taxes for the property commonly known as 

Westlake Village Golf Course. Mr. Leathers is currently in discussions with other taxing bodies, however 

since this is in Unincorporated Winnebago County, the County has become the lead agent. Since 2018, 

the golf course has ceased operations and is being used as agricultural property for the production of 

hay. Being that this is in Westlake Village, the uses for this specific property are limited due to the 

development being established as a PCD (Planned Community Development), March 9, 1995. The 

current property owner Swan Hills Golf, LLC have requested a change in assessment back to Farmland 

mailto:lynxgolfcourse@gmail.com


COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Project Report for: 
Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village 

Tax Abatement 

 
Friday, April 1, 2022  [ 2 / 3 ] 

which will be a drastic decrease in the tax bill. However, with Mr. Leathers of Lynx Golf Course pursuing 

the acquisition of the property to re-establish the golf course, grounds, and renovate the clubhouse over 

the upcoming years in a phased approach this will change. By the re-establishment of the golf course 

and the facilities accessory to it, the assessment will then change to Open Space, thus having a higher 

equalized assessed value than Farmland would (See table below, Exhibit A).  

EXHIBIT A       

Scenario: If No Development Occurs, it'll revert to agricultural, farmland.    

   

Year Taxes 
From 

Taxes 
Payabl

e 
Assessment Classification 

Equalized 
Assessed Value 

EAV (1/3): 

Estimated 
Total Tax Bill 

Winnebago 
County's Portion 

of Tax Bill 

Tax 
Abatement 

% Reduction 

County Abated 
Amount (Cost) 

1 2022 2023 Non-Farm/Non-Open Space  $     551,918.00   $   46,160.21   $           5,206.87  100%  $      (5,206.87) 
2 2023 2024 Non-Farm/Non-Open Space  $     551,918.00   $   46,160.21   $           5,206.87  95%  $      (4,946.53) 
3 2024 2025 Non-Farm/Non-Open Space  $     551,918.00   $   46,160.21   $           5,206.87  90%  $      (4,686.18) 
4 2025 2026 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  85%  $          (883.94) 
5 2026 2027 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  75%  $          (779.94) 
6 2027 2028 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  65%  $          (675.95) 
7 2028 2029 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  55%  $          (571.96) 
8 2029 2030 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  45%  $          (467.97) 
9 2030 2031 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  35%  $          (363.97) 

10 2031 2032 Farmland  $     110,230.00   $      9,219.20   $           1,039.93  25%  $          (259.98) 

      $203,015.02   $        22,900.09    $   (18,843.30) 

 

The “Non-Farm/Non-Open Space” will drop-off after 3 years and the assessment will change to either 

“Farmland” or “Open Space”. This project will combat the referenced lower assessment (Farmland) drop 

listed above (Exhibit A), by establishing it as a golf course, which will then be assessed as, “Open Space” 

(See table below, Exhibit B). The assessed value of “Open Space” will increase the assessed value of this 

property approximately 58% in comparison to “Farmland”.  

 This is expected to have a job creation of 11.5 full-time equivalent positions (8 full-time, 7 part-

time), as well as an aspect of the of sales tax dollars generation from the pro shop, gaming, food and 

beverages. Finally, considering the current housing shortage in Winnebago County, staff is also hopeful 

that this project will encourage more new homes to be built in the vacant lots at Westlake Village, which 

will then result in the increasing of the tax base. There are 172 lots that abut the golf course, based on 

the 2021 aerials, 34 of them are vacant lots. 

 



COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Project Report for: 
Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village 

Tax Abatement 

 
Friday, April 1, 2022  [ 3 / 3 ] 

 

EXHIBIT B       

Scenario: If the Development Occurs (Golf Course, Clubhouse, Food & Beverage Sales)  PROPOSED 
ABATEMENT 

 

Year Taxes 
From 

Taxes 
Payable Assessment Classification 

Equalized 
Assessed Value 

EAV (1/3): 

Estimated 
Total Tax Bill 

Winnebago 
County's Portion 

of Tax Bill 

Tax 
Abatement 

% Reduction 

County Abated 
Amount (Cost) 

1 2022 2023 Non-Farm/Non-Open Space  $     551,918.00   $   46,160.21   $           5,206.87  100%  $      (5,206.87) 
2 2023 2024 Non-Farm/Non-Open Space  $     551,918.00   $   46,160.21   $           5,206.87  95%  $      (4,946.53) 
3 2024 2025 Non-Farm/Non-Open Space  $     551,918.00   $   46,160.21   $           5,206.87  90%  $      (4,686.18) 
4 2025 2026 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  85%  $      (2,115.43) 
5 2026 2027 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  75%  $      (1,866.56) 
6 2027 2028 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  65%  $      (1,617.68) 
7 2028 2029 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  55%  $      (1,368.81) 
8 2029 2030 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  45%  $      (1,119.94) 
9 2030 2031 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  35%  $          (871.06) 

10 2031 2032 Open Space  $     263,802.00   $   22,063.34   $           2,488.75  25%  $          (622.19) 

      $292,924.05   $        33,041.83    $   (24,421.25) 

 

               Lynx Golf Course intends to collaborate with the Pecatonica and Winnebago School Districts to 

make this course their practice and home competition course for their schools through a partnership, 

which previously existed prior to the golf course shut-down. Currently, the school golf teams have had 

to travel further for practice and competitions. They are expecting to operate at a tight budget for the 

first handful of years due to the amount of improvements needed to rehab and renovate the 131 acres, 

inclusive of the clubhouse. There is also added costs each year with a breakdown of yearly projects to 

update and make the course more attractive through necessary improvements. This tax abatement will 

help offset those costs and assist in the initial business start-up expenses that are foreseen and 

unforeseen. The golf course is anticipated to be operational this year, by August 1, 2022. Their plan also 

includes the hosting of events and outings that will create activity throughout the year and benefit 

multiple other industries.  

Additional Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
3. Site Map of the location 
4. Tax Information 
5. Assessment Comparison – Taxes (Non-Farm/Non Open-Space, Farmland, Open-Space) 



3/23/22, 11:31 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

LLC File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

cyberdriveillinois.com is now ilsos.gov

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White  

File Number 11294367

Entity Name LYNX GOLF COURSE LLC

Status ACTIVE

Principal Office
3820 WESTLAKE VILLAGE 
WINNEBAGO, IL 610880000

Entity Type
LLC

Type of LLC
Domestic

Organization/Admission Date
Wednesday, 12 January 2022

Jurisdiction
IL

Duration
PERPETUAL



3/23/22, 11:31 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Managers

Series Name

Name
NORTHWEST REGISTERED AGENT SER

Address
2501 CHATHAM RD SUITE N 
SPRINGFIELD , IL 62704

Change Date
Wednesday, 12 January 2022

For Year

Filing Date
00/00/0000

Name 
Address
LEATHERS, SCOTT 
2501 CHATHAM RD SUITE N 
SPRINGFIELD, IL 62704

Name 
Address
LEATHERS, STEVEN 
5572 WHITE FOX DRIVE 
ROCKFORD, IL 61102

NOT AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH SERIES

Return to Search 

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


3/23/22, 11:31 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Wed Mar 23 2022This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)



Smith Rd

Springhill C
t

We
stp

oin
t L

n

Westridge Ct

Westwind Dr

Bayside Pte

Westlake Village Dr

Edgewater
Pte

Riverton Pl

Lake Pte

Westbrook Pte

Clearwater Pt
Ah

ren
s R

d

Lakeview Dr

Country Meadow Dr

Saunders Rd

Foxglove Ln

Westridge Dr

Springhill Dr

N 
Ho

isi
ng

ton
 R

d

/
The Winnebago County computerized aerial base property maps were assembled using
County, State and other data. The map files are not intended to be the official survey of
the land. The official land records are on file in the Winnebago County Recorder's Office.

1 inch = 450 feet

PIN: 09-25-376-013
Westlake Village: Golf Course

Legend
Tax Parcels

Created by Chris Dornbush
Date: 3/2/2022



3/23/22, 11:34 AM Winnebago County Treasurer Parcel Tax Details Inquiry -- Results

treasurer.wincoil.us/TaxRecord.aspx?PIN=09-25-376-013 1/2

Wincoil Home Page 
Treasurer Home Page 

Supervisor of Assessments 
Search Again

Parcel Tax Details
 for Parcel Number 09-25-376-013

View Property via WinGIS 

Please choose the tax year you would like to view details for: 
2020  

Tax Payment Informa�on 
2020 taxes payable in 2021

Owner Address Taxbill Address
SWAN HILLS GOLF LLC SWAN HILLS GOLF LLC
8080 TIMMERMAN DRIVE 8080 TIMMERMAN DRIVE
EAST DUBUQUE, IL 61025 EAST DUBUQUE,IL 61025

------ First Installment------ ------ Second Installment------
Due Date:    6/4/2021 Due Date:    9/3/2021
    Amount:    22797.63     Amount:    22797.63
     Penalty:        531.55      Penalty:        0.00
         Cost:        0.00          Cost:        0.00
 Total Due:    23329.18  Total Due:    22797.63
Paid:    23329.18    Date:    6/7/2021 Paid:    22797.63    Date:    9/3/2021
By:   Illinois Bank & Trust Lockbox By:   SWAN HILLS GOLF LLC

For Parcel Address:   3820 WESTLAKE VILLAGE DR
Tax Calcula�on

Descrip�on  Amount
Board of Review Assessed Value  531712
Township Equaliza�on Factor x 1.0000
Board of Review Equalized Value = 545163
Home Improvement Exemp�on - 0
Disabled Veteran Exemp�on - 0

http://wincoil.us/
http://www.winnebagotreasurer.com/
http://assessor.wincoil.us/
http://treasurer.wincoil.us/TaxSearch.aspx
https://agis.wingis.org/maps/PropertySearch.aspx?Pin=0925376013&county=winn


3/23/22, 11:34 AM Winnebago County Treasurer Parcel Tax Details Inquiry -- Results

treasurer.wincoil.us/TaxRecord.aspx?PIN=09-25-376-013 2/2

Department of Revenue Assessed Value = 545163
County Mul�plier x 1.0000
Revised Equalized Value = 545163
Senior Freeze Exemp�on - 0
FAF/VAF Exemp�on - 0
Owner Occupied Exemp�on - 0
Over 65 Exemp�on - 0
New Disabled or Veteran Exemp�on - 0
Returning Veteran Exemp�on - 0
Taxable Value = 545163
Tax Rate for Tax Code  281 x 8.3636
Calculated Tax = $45595.26
Non Ad Valorem - + $0.00
Abatements - $0.00
TOTAL TAX DUE: = $45595.26
Fair Market Value:    1635650 1977 Equalized Value:    0

Taxing Bodies and Rates
Taxing Body Rate Tax
WINNEBAGO COUNTY 0.9436 $5144.15
FOREST PRESERVE 0.1073 $584.96
PECATONICA TOWNSHIP 0.1752 $955.13
PECATONICA FIRE 0.3757 $2048.18
SUMNER PARK 0.1382 $753.42
PECATONICA LIBRARY 0.1856 $1011.82
PECATONICA UNIT SD #321 5.7454 $31321.80
COMMUNITY COLLEGE 511 0.4615 $2515.93
PECATONICA TWSP ROAD 0.1794 $978.02
PE/SE MULTI TOWNSHIP 0.0517 $281.85

******** End of Real Estate Tax Informa�on ********

Top of Page 

Search Again

http://treasurer.wincoil.us/TaxSearch.aspx


Assessment Comparison-Taxes

[ 1 / 6 ] Printed: 4/11/2022 11:59 AM

Company: Westlake Village (aka Lynx) Golf Course
Address: 3820 Westlake Village Drive

PIN(s): 09-25-376-013

Tax Year Info: 2021

PIN(s):
09-25-376-013 1,655,754.00$    

-$                     

Assessment: Non-Farm / Non Open Space
551,918$             

Tax Code Rate: 8.3636 0.0836
Estimated Tax Bill: 46,160.21$         

5 Largest Taxing Bodies

Rank Government Entity
Entity % of Tax 

Bill
Tax Amount

1 Pecatonica Unit SD #321 68.70% 31,710$        
2 Winnebago County 11.28% 5,208$          
3 Community College 511 5.52% 2,547$          
4 Pecatonica Fire 4.49% 2,074$          
5 Pecatonica Library 2.22% 1,024$          

92.21% 42,563$        

551,918.00$                         
-$                                       

551,918.00$                         

TOTAL

Equalized Assessed Value (1/3):

Equalized Assessed Value 
(1/3):

Fair Market 
Value:

Pecatonica Unit 
SD #321, 
$31,710 

Winnebago 
County, $5,208 

Community 
College 511, 

$2,547 

Pecatonica Fire, 
$2,074 

Pecatonica 
Library, $1,024 

Top 5 Taxing Body Amount



Assessment Comparison-Taxes

[ 2 / 6 ] Printed: 4/11/2022 11:59 AM

Assessment: Non-Farm / Non Open Space

Top 5 Estimated 
Participation TAXING BODY Rate Pension Rank  Rate Tax % Tax Bill  Tax Amount

1 Pecatonica Unit SD #321 5.5057 0.2397 1 5.7454 31,709.90$  68.70% 31,709.90$            
1 Winnebago County 0.7259 0.2177 2 0.9436 5,207.90$    11.28% 5,207.90$               
1 Community College 511 0.4615 0.0000 3 0.4615 2,547.10$    5.52% 2,547.10$               
1 Pecatonica Fire 0.3757 0.0000 4 0.3757 2,073.56$    4.49% 2,073.56$               
1 Pecatonica Library 0.1773 0.0083 5 0.1856 1,024.36$    2.22% 1,024.36$               
0 Pecatonica Township  Road 0.1794 0.0000 6 0.1794 990.14$        2.15% -$                         
0 Pecatonica Township 0.1752 0.0000 7 0.1752 966.96$        2.09% -$                         
0 Sumner Park 0.1382 0.0000 8 0.1382 762.75$        1.65% -$                         
0 Forest Preserve 0.1019 0.0054 9 0.1073 592.21$        1.28% -$                         
0 PE/SE Multi Township 0.0517 0.0000 10 0.0517 285.34$        0.62% -$                         
0 0.0000 0.0000 11 0.0000 -$              0.00% -$                         

10 7.8925 0.4711 8.3636 46,160.21$  100.00% 42,562.81$            
8.3636

TAX RATE Current



Assessment Comparison-Taxes

[ 3 / 6 ] Printed: 4/11/2022 11:59 AM

Company: Westlake Village (aka Lynx) Golf Course
Address: 3820 Westlake Village Drive

PIN(s): 09-25-376-013

Tax Year Info: 2021

PIN(s):
09-25-376-013 330,690.00$       

-$                      

Assessment: Farmland
110,230$             

TOTAL Tax Code Rate: 8.3636 0.0836
Estimated Tax Bill: 9,219.20$            

5 Largest Taxing Bodies

Rank Government Entity
Entity % of Tax 

Bill
Tax Amount

1 Pecatonica Unit SD #321 68.70% 6,333$          
2 Winnebago County 11.28% 1,040$          
3 Community College 511 5.52% 509$             
4 Pecatonica Fire 4.49% 414$             
5 Pecatonica Library 2.22% 205$             

92.21% 8,501$          

Equalized Assessed Value (1/3):

Fair Market 
Value:

Equalized Assessed Value 
(1/3):

110,230.00$                         
-$                                       

110,230.00$                         

Pecatonica Unit 
SD #321, 
$6,333 

Winnebago 
County, $1,040 

Community 
College 511, 

$509 

Pecatonica Fire, 
$414 

Pecatonica 
Library, $205 

Top 5 Taxing Body Amount



Assessment Comparison-Taxes

[ 4 / 6 ] Printed: 4/11/2022 11:59 AM

Assessment: Farmland

Top 5 Estimated 
Participation TAXING BODY Rate Pension Rank  Rate Tax % Tax Bill  Tax Amount

1 Pecatonica Unit SD #321 5.5057 0.2397 1 5.7454 6,333.15$  68.70% 6,333.15$        
1 Winnebago County 0.7259 0.2177 2 0.9436 1,040.13$  11.28% 1,040.13$        
1 Community College 511 0.4615 0.0000 3 0.4615 508.71$     5.52% 508.71$            
1 Pecatonica Fire 0.3757 0.0000 4 0.3757 414.13$     4.49% 414.13$            
1 Pecatonica Library 0.1773 0.0083 5 0.1856 204.59$     2.22% 204.59$            
0 Pecatonica Township  Road 0.1794 0.0000 6 0.1794 197.75$     2.15% -$                  
0 Pecatonica Township 0.1752 0.0000 7 0.1752 193.12$     2.09% -$                  
0 Sumner Park 0.1382 0.0000 8 0.1382 152.34$     1.65% -$                  
0 Forest Preserve 0.1019 0.0054 9 0.1073 118.28$     1.28% -$                  
0 PE/SE Multi Township 0.0517 0.0000 10 0.0517 56.99$        0.62% -$                  
0 0.0000 0.0000 11 0.0000 -$            0.00% -$                  

10 7.8925 0.4711 8.3636 9,219.20$  100.00% 8,500.72$        

Current

8.3636

TAX RATE



Assessment Comparison-Taxes

[ 5 / 6 ] Printed: 4/11/2022 11:59 AM

Company: Westlake Village (aka Lynx) Golf Course
Address: 3820 Westlake Village Drive

PIN(s): 09-25-376-013

Tax Year Info: 2021

PIN(s):
09-25-376-013 791,406.00$       

-$                     

Assessment: Open-Space
263,802$             

TOTAL Tax Code Rate: 8.3636 0.0836
Estimated Tax Bill: 22,063.34$         

5 Largest Taxing Bodies

Rank Government Entity
Entity % of Tax 

Bill
Tax Amount

1 Pecatonica Unit SD #321 68.70% 15,156$          
2 Winnebago County 11.28% 2,489$            
3 Community College 511 5.52% 1,217$            
4 Pecatonica Fire 4.49% 991$                
5 Pecatonica Library 2.22% 490$                

92.21% 20,344$          

Equalized Assessed Value (1/3):

Fair Market 
Value:

Equalized Assessed Value 
(1/3):

263,802.00$                          
-$                                        

263,802.00$                          

Pecatonica Unit 
SD #321, 
$15,156 

Winnebago 
County, $2,489 

Community 
College 511, 

$1,217 

Pecatonica Fire, 
$991 Pecatonica 

Library, $490 

Top 5 Taxing Body Amount



Assessment Comparison-Taxes

[ 6 / 6 ] Printed: 4/11/2022 11:59 AM

Assessment: Open-Space

Top 5 Estimated 
Participation TAXING BODY Rate Pension Rank  Rate Tax % Tax Bill  Tax Amount

1 Pecatonica Unit SD #321 5.5057 0.2397 1 5.7454 15,156.48$         68.70% 15,156.48$   
1 Winnebago County 0.7259 0.2177 2 0.9436 2,489.24$           11.28% 2,489.24$     
1 Community College 511 0.4615 0.0000 3 0.4615 1,217.45$           5.52% 1,217.45$     
1 Pecatonica Fire 0.3757 0.0000 4 0.3757 991.10$              4.49% 991.10$         
1 Pecatonica Library 0.1773 0.0083 5 0.1856 489.62$              2.22% 489.62$         
0 Pecatonica Township  Road 0.1794 0.0000 6 0.1794 473.26$              2.15% -$               
0 Pecatonica Township 0.1752 0.0000 7 0.1752 462.18$              2.09% -$               
0 Sumner Park 0.1382 0.0000 8 0.1382 364.57$              1.65% -$               
0 Forest Preserve 0.1019 0.0054 9 0.1073 283.06$              1.28% -$               
0 PE/SE Multi Township 0.0517 0.0000 10 0.0517 136.39$              0.62% -$               
0 0.0000 0.0000 11 0.0000 -$                     0.00% -$               

10 7.8925 0.4711 8.3636 22,063.34$         100.00% 20,343.88$   

Current

8.3636

TAX RATE



Paid on 
09/03/2021

457 506 09-25-376-013

8080 TIMMERMAN DRIVE
SWAN HILLS GOLF LLC

1

*$RE09253760131$*
Property Code

457 506 09-25-376-013

Parcel ID

Paid on 
09/03/2021

EAST DUBUQUE IL  61025-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/04/2021

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2020 Parcel ID: 09-25-376-013

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

3,957.340.72591,903.440.7465WINNEBAGO COUNTY
1,186.810.2177559.930.2196- PENSION

555.520.1019267.730.1050FOREST PRESERVE
29.440.005414.530.0057- PENSION

955.130.1752463.550.1818PECATONICA TOWNSHIP
2,048.180.37571,018.900.3996PECATONICA FIRE

753.420.1382365.640.1434SUMNER PARK
966.570.1773466.360.1829PECATONICA LIBRARY
45.250.008322.440.0088- PENSION

30,015.025.505718,408.797.2197PECATONICA UNIT SD #321
1,306.780.2397847.040.3322- PENSION

2,515.930.46151,199.170.4703COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

978.020.1794474.770.1862PECATONICA TWSP ROAD
281.850.0517136.670.0536PE/SE MULTI TOWNSHIP

Totals: 10.2553 26,148.96 8.3636 45,595.26

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-239-1394
$45,595.26

Fair Market Value:

1,635,650

Location of

3820 WESTLAKE VILLAGE DR Property:

2

09/03/2021 $0.00

Property Code

457 506

*$RE09253760132$*
Parcel ID

09-25-376-013

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

531,712
0
0

531,712
1.0000

545,163
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 531,712
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $45,595.25
Tax Rate for Tax Code 281 8.3636
Taxable Value 545,163

    Formula for Tax Calculation

SWAN HILLS GOLF LLC
8080 TIMMERMAN DRIVE
EAST DUBUQUE IL  61025-

8080 TIMMERMAN DRIVE

EAST DUBUQUE IL  61025-

SWAN HILLS GOLF LLC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2020

BEG NE COR LT 175 WESTLAKE VILLAGE NO 2 SW 807.6 FT NW 

Reason for Change Signature

CORRECTED

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    April 21, 2022  

Resolution Title:    Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Reliance 
        Standard To Provide Term Life Insurance and Accidental Death and   
        Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance  

Board Meeting Date:    April 28, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                       Appropriation Amount:   $20,256 Increase 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   48500-43172  Budget Impact:   $20,256 Increase 

 
 
Background Information:    
Winnebago County provides a $20,000 basic/AD&D term life insurance policy to all full time 
employees.  We have been with Reliance Standard since June 2017, after a 12% rate decrease in 
2020, our rate for 2022 is increasing 80%.   The increase is based on our experience for the past 36 
months, we have filed 8 basic life insurance claims in 36 months.   
 
 
Recommendation: 

County Administrator, Patrick Thompson and Human Resources Director, Debbie Crozier, have 

reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommend its approval.   

 
Contract/Agreement: 
June 1, 2022 – May 31, 2025 
 
 
Legal Review:    Reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board: April 28, 2022 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by: Keith McDonald 
Submitted by: Operations and Administrative Committee 

 
2022 CR 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH RELIANCE STANDARD 
TO PROVIDE TERM LIFE INSURANCE AND ACCIDENTAL DEATH & DISMEMBERMENT (AD&D) 

INSURANCE 
 

 
 
 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago provides to all employees a term life insurance policy 

of $20,000, with an accidental death & dismemberment rider; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Reliance Standard has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County for life 
insurance for 3 years effective June 1, 2022: 

 
$3.60 ($0.18/$1,000) per employee per month for life insurance 

$.20 ($0.01/$1,000) per employee per month for AD&D 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Reliance Standard for the administration of the term life 
insurance and AD&D coverage for the timeframe of June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2025. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with Reliance Standard, 1100 E. Woodfield Road, Suite 427, 
Schaumburg, IL 60172 for life insurance and AD&D coverage. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 

upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN  KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON  JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2022. 

 

 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



   

 
 
April 22, 2022

Ms. Deb Crozier
Winnebago County
404 Elm Street
Rockford, IL  61104

Dear Ms. Crozier:

Thank you for allowing Reliance Standard and Matrix the opportunity to provide employee benefits to Winnebago 
County. We value the relationship and are excited to be part of your employees’ benefits solutions.

As part of our commitment to superior service delivery, we continually review our customers’ plan design in order 
to determine appropriate performance and pricing.  Contributing pricing factors may include your claims 
experience, the nature of your business, geographic location(s), and employer contribution level(s), among other 
factors. In addition to the aforementioned contributing pricing factors, please note that we reserve the right to 
adjust the premium rate at any time if there is a change in federal or state laws, insurance programs or retirement 
benefits that would impact our liability. If such adjustments are required, notice will be sent at that time under 
separate cover. 

In this regard, we have calculated the renewal rates for your in-force program with us. Below are your renewal 
rates and fees, effective June 1, 2022 through June 1, 2025. NOTE: Any lines not mentioned below will renew at 
the existing rates. If Winnebago County also has a Dental or Vision policy with Reliance Standard, the renewal 
notification will be sent under separate cover.

Please review the information and feel free to contact your local Sales Partner and/or Client Manager if you have 
any questions.

Line of Coverage – Insurance Products
Underwritten by Reliance Standard

Policy Number In-Force Rate Renewal Rate

Life Insurance GL157841 $.10/$1,000 $.18/$1,000

Basic AD&D Insurance GL157841 $.01/$1,000 $.01/$1,000

Life Insurance – Dependent/Supplemental Life GL157845 Step Rates Step Rates
The pricing contained within this renewal is determined holistically and predicated on all lines and services remaining inforce upon accepting 
the renewal

We are a proud member of the Tokio Marine Group, one of the largest and most respected insurance groups in 
the world. Your satisfaction with your benefits partner is about more than cost; it’s about value and service for 
you and your employees.

EXHIBIT A



   

Thank you again for choosing Reliance Standard and Matrix, we value your business and look forward to our 
continued partnership.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
Sherri Webber 
Underwriting Assistant 
Reliance Standard  
 
cc:         Brian Huinker, Group Benefit Partners LLC, 866-496-3102  

Jake Duffy, Reliance Standard Life Insurance, Chicago 800-922-0509 
Hope Figueroa, Reliance Standard Life Insurance, hope.figueroa@rsli.com  
  

 
Reliance Standard is a branding name. Insurance products and services are offered by Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company in all 
states (except New York), the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands and Guam. In New York, insurance products and 
services are offered by First Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company, Home Office, and New York, NY. Not all products are available 

in all states.  Absence Services are provided by Matrix Absence Management, Inc. 

 



  

 

             
  

 

1700 Market Street, Suite 1200 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-3938 

(267) 256-3500 
(800) 351-7500 

 
 
April 11, 2022 
 
 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61104 
 
 
Attention: Ms. Deb Crozier 
 
 
RE:  POLICYHOLDER:  Winnebago County 

GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 
POLICY NUMBER:  GL 157845 

 
 
Dear Ms. Crozier: 
 
This letter will confirm the Administrative Agreement by and between Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (herein 
called the Company) and the above named Policyholder regarding the terms of the approved "Enrollment Period".  This 
agreement takes effect on May 1, 2022. 
 
An "Enrollment Period" will take place from May 1, 2022 through May 31, 2022.  During this time, applications for 
employees and spouses who were previously eligible and are now applying for initial insurance coverage or are insured 
and applying for additional insurance coverage will not require proof of good health for insurance coverage up to the 
guarantee issue limits stated in this Policy, provided: 
 

(1) the application is complete, signed, and received by the Policyholder during the "Enrollment Period"; 
(2) the employee and/or the spouse was not previously declined for group life insurance with the Company; and 
(3) the employee and/or the spouse did not have an application withdrawn or marked as incomplete for any reason. 

 
Insurance coverage applied for during this "Enrollment Period" will be effective on June 1, 2022, provided the employee is 
Actively at Work, the spouse is not confined in a hospital or at home, applicable premium is paid and any applicable 
service waiting period has been satisfied. 
 
All amounts in excess of the guarantee issue limits stated in the Policy, are subject to the Company's approval of proof of 
good health and such amounts of insurance will not be effective until approved by the Company. 
 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement (related to this subject matter) between the parties hereto. 
 
Any amendments or modifications of this Agreement can only be made by a writing that is signed by both parties. 
 
This Agreement may be terminated by either party with 31 days advance notice to the other party. 
 
This Agreement is subject to the laws of the state of Illinois. 
 



  

  

 
Page 2 
GL 157845 
April 11, 2022 
 
 
This Agreement is not considered to be part of the Policy, but will terminate in the event the Policy terminates. 
 
All terms and conditions, including applicable limitations and exclusions, of the Policy remain in full force and effect as 
stated therein.  Except as stated herein, nothing contained in this Agreement will alter or affect any of the terms of the 
Policy. 
 
 
RELIANCE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 
COMPANY 
 

 

  
Winnebago County 

Signature 
 

 
Michael Spinelli 
Assistant Vice President, Underwriting 
April 11, 2022 

 

Signature 

Name 

Title 

Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
*BC1ADAGGL       15784504/01/2022*RSL 
*BC2ADAGWinnebago County 
*BC3ADAGL8 
 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    April 21, 2022  

Resolution Title:    Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Reliance 
        Standard for Voluntary Life Insurance  

Board Meeting Date:    April 28, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   N/A                       Appropriation Amount:   100% Employee Paid 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A                   Budget Impact:   100% Employee Paid 

 
 
Background Information: 
Winnebago County offers a voluntary life insurance option for all full time employees.  191 
employees have the voluntary life benefit.  The rates are not increasing for 2022.  
 
 
Recommendation:     

County Administrator, Patrick Thompson and Human Resources Director, Debbie Crozier, have 

reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommend its approval.   

 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
June 1, 2022 – May 31, 2025 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Previously reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board: April 28, 2022 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by: Keith McDonald 
Submitted by: Operations and Administrative Committee 

 
2022 CR 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH RELIANCE 
STANDARD FOR VOLUNTARY LIFE INSURANCE 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago offers voluntary life insurance to active employees; 
and, 

 

WHEREAS, Reliance Standard has proposed the attached rates to Winnebago County for 
voluntary life insurance coverage for 3 years effective June 1, 2022: 

 
See Attachment A 

 
This benefit is 100% employee paid. 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Reliance Standard for the administration of the voluntary 
life insurance coverage for the timeframe of June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2025. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with Reliance Standard, 1100 E. Woodfield Road, Suite 427, 
Schaumburg, IL 60172 for voluntary life insurance coverage. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 

upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN  KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON  JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2022. 

 

 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Winnebago County
Voluntary Life & AD&D - Plan Analysis
Renewal Date June 1, 2022

Exhibit A

Age EE SP Age EE SP

<30 0.050$  0.050$  <30 0.050$  0.050$  

30-34 0.060$  0.060$  30-34 0.060$  0.060$  

35-39 0.080$  0.080$  35-39 0.080$  0.080$  

40-44 0.090$  0.090$  40-44 0.090$  0.090$  

45-49 0.120$  0.120$  45-49 0.120$  0.120$  

50-54 0.210$  0.210$  50-54 0.210$  0.210$  

55-59 0.340$  0.340$  55-59 0.340$  0.340$  

60-64 0.580$  0.580$  60-64 0.580$  0.580$  

65-69 0.690$  0.690$  65-69 0.690$  0.690$  

70-74 1.270$  1.270$  70-74 1.270$  1.270$  

75+ 2.060$  2.060$  75+ 2.060$  2.060$  

AD&D 0.020$  0.020$  AD&D 0.020$  0.020$  

0.210$  0.210$  

0.020$  0.020$  

Rates are not final until approved by insurance carrier.  Illustration is for comparative purposes only.  Please see carrier brochure/certificate for exact coverage.

The information contained herein is subject to the disclosures and disclaimers on the final page of this presentation. 

Current

Rate Per $1,000

Renewal

Child Life Child Life

Child AD&D

Reliance Standard

Child AD&D

Rate Per $1,000

Reliance Standard

Accepted Opt. ____________ Client Signature ______________________________________ Date ____________    GBS Auth Agent ______________________________________ 

Date ____________



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



























































































































































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 Joseph V. Chiarelli 
County Board Chairman 

 

County of Winnebago 
 

 

 
404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101  Phone (815) 319-4225 • Fax (815) 319-4226 

Email: Joe@WinCoIL.us   Website: www.WinCoIL.us  
 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: March 24, 2022 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends Ginger Haas of 
Rockford, IL 61109 to serve a 3-year term from May 1, 2022 – April 30, 2025 on the Four Rivers 
Sanitation Authority Board of Trustees. 

 
  

 Four Rivers Sanitation Authority  
 

Location:   3501 Kishwaukee Street  
Rockford, IL 61109  

Service 
Description:   

Providing sanitary sewer services to the area under its jurisdiction including 
Rockford, Roscoe, Loves Park, Machesney Park, Winnebago, New Milford and 
unincorporated areas  

Board 
Composition:   

Five (5) members appointed by the County Board Chairman with the advice and 
consent of the County Board   
• Can’t be from the same municipality if more than one municipality in district 
• No more than 3 of 5 in the same political party 
• Must reside in district 
• All term dates expire April 30th and must be filled within 60 days of 
expiration. 

Origin of Entity:   Sanitary District Act of 1917 (70 ILCS 2405/)  

Compensation:  $6,000 per year 
Bond: $1,000 

Attorney: Ed Fitzgerald 

Meetings: 4th Monday of the month, 5:15 pm Four Rivers Sanitation Authority, Graceffa 
Administration Building, 3501 Kishwaukee St., Rockford 

Property 
Tax/Funding:   

  

 
Levies a property tax, assesses fees for sewer services and replacement tax 

Consolidation/  
Dissolution 

Plans:   

If applicable  









 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: April 28, 2022 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Second Meeting with Constellation Energy Generation, LLC (Constellation) to 

discuss Performance Monitoring of  Pressurizer Welds at Byron Nuclear Station 
(Byron) and Braidwood Nuclear Station (Braidwood) 
 

b. Federal Register/Vol. 87, No. 75 / Tuesday, April 19, 2022 / Notices 
 

c. Byron Station, Units 1 and 2 – Confirmation of Initial License Examination 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Bureau of Land a Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Clean Construction or 
Demolition Debris (CCDD) (LPC-PA26). Description of Project: Renewal of CCDD Permit 
CCDD2016-013-DE/OP. The site of owned by John’s Stone, LLC. The facility will be 
operated by Illinois CCDD operating, LLC, The anticipated closure date in 2039.  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, Public Participation & Proclamations
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Karl Ericksen
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Transfer from General Fund to Special Revenue Funds
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment to Change PT Admin. Asst. to FT Admin Asst.
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment to Hire an ESDA Coordinator
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment Addding Admin. Asst. Position in Corrections Administration
	Resolution Awarding Elevator Electrical Services Modernization for Administration Bldg.
	Resolution to Grant ARP Funding to AARC at Booker Center for Capital Repairs
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Abating Property Taxes at 3820 Westlake Village Drive, Winnebago, IL
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agrmt with Reliance Standard to Provide Term Life Ins. & AD&D
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agrmt with Reliance Standard for Voluntary Life Ins.
	Public Works Committee
	(22-010) Resolution
	(22-011) Resolution
	(22-012) Resolution
	(22-013) Resolution
	(22-014) Resolution
	(22-015) Resolution
	(22-016) Resolution
	(22-017) Resolution
	Unfinished Business
	Ginger Haas
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment

	Organization  Business Name: Lynx Golf Course at Westlake Village
	Contact Person 1: Steven C Leathers
	Position: Owner
	Phone #1 Area Code: 815
	Phone #1-3: 218
	Phone #1-4: 6661
	1-E-mail#: Lynxgolfcourse
	E-mail #1-@: gmail.com
	Contact Person 2: Scott A Leathers
	Position_2: Owner
	Phone #2 Area Code: 815
	Phone #2-3: 520
	Phone #2-4: 5708
	2-E-mail: Lynxgolfcourse
	E-mail#2@: gmail.com
	Location  Address: 3820 Westlake Drive Winnebago IL 61088
	PIN-1: 0
	PIN-2: 9
	PIN-3: 2
	PIN-4: 5
	PIN-5: 3
	PIN-6: 7
	PIN-7: 6
	PIN-8: 0
	PIN-9: 1
	PIN-10: 3
	2-PIN-1: 
	2-PIN-2: 
	2-PIN-3: 
	2-PIN-4: 
	2-PIN-5: 
	2-PIN-6: 
	2-PIN-7: 
	2-PIN-8: 
	2-PIN-9: 
	2-PIN-10: 
	New Construction-Check Box: Off
	Existing - New Construction SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - New Construction SF: 
	Total - New Construction SF: 
	Addition/Expansion-Check Box6: Off
	Existing - Addition/Expansion SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - Addition/Expansion SF: 
	Total - Addition/Expansion SF: 
	Remodel-Check Box7: Yes
	Existing - Remodel SF: 5778336
	Proposed/Additional - Remodel SF: 
	Total - Remodel SF: 5778336
	Other-Check Box8: Off
	Existing - Other SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - Other SF: 
	Total - Other SF: 
	If other explain: 131 acres of golf course that needs extensive landscaping repair (greens, bunkers, water hazard, tee boxes, tree removal / planting, parking lot repair, irrigation system, and clubhouse remodel of 2000 square feet).).
	Start Date: 4/1/2022
	End Date: 8/182022
	FullTime Equivalent FTE Construction Jobs: 0
	PartTime Equivalent PTE Construction Jobs: 0
	Temporary Construction Jobs: 0
	TOTAL Construction Jobs: 0
	FullTime Equivalent FTE Newly Created Jobs: 8
	PartTime Equivalent PTE Newly Created Jobs: 7
	Temporary Newly Created Jobs: 0
	TOTAL Newly Created Jobs: 15
	FullTime Equivalent FTE Retained Jobs: 0
	PartTime Equivalent PTE Retained Jobs: 0
	Temporary Retained Jobs: 0
	TOTAL Retained Jobs: 0
	FullTime Equivalent FTE TOTAL: 8
	PartTime Equivalent PTE TOTAL: 7
	Temporary TOTAL: 0
	TOTAL TOTAL: 15
	Total Project Cost: $800,000 ($550K course purchase / $250 course remodel)
	Developer: 
	Text16$-1: 
	Text16$-2: 
	Text16$-3: 
	Text16$-4: 
	Text16$-5: 
	Text16$-6: 
	Text16$-7: 
	Text16$-8: 
	Text16$-9: 
	Developer 11: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved: 
	Municipality: 
	Text17$-1: 
	Text17$-2: 
	Text17$-3: 
	Text17$-4: 
	Text17$-5: 
	Text17$-6: 
	Text17$-7: 
	Text17$-8: 
	Text17$-9: 
	Municipality 12: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_2: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_2: 
	Tax Body 1: 
	Text18$-1: 
	Text18$-2: 
	Text18$-3: 
	Text18$-4: 
	Text18$-5: 
	Text18$-6: 
	Text18$-7: 
	Text18$-8: 
	Text18$-9: 
	Taxing Body 13: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_3: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_3: 
	Tax Body 2: 
	Text19$-1: 
	Text19$-2: 
	Text19$-3: 
	Text19$-4: 
	Text19$-5: 
	Text19$-6: 
	Text19$-7: 
	Text19$-8: 
	Text19$-9: 
	Taxing Body 14: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_4: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_4: 
	Tax Body 3: 
	Text20$-1: 
	Text20$-2: 
	Text20$-4: 
	Text20$-3: 
	Text20$-5: 
	Text20$-6: 
	Text20$-7: 
	Text20$-8: 
	Text20$-9: 
	Taxing Body 15: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_5: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_5: 
	Other 1: 
	Text21$-1: 
	Text21$-2: 
	Text21$-3: 
	Text21$-4: 
	Text21$-5: 
	Text21$-6: 
	Text21$-7: 
	Text21$-8: 
	Text21$-9: 
	Other 16: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_6: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_6: 
	Other 2: 
	Text22$-1: 
	Text22$-2: 
	Text22$-3: 
	Text22$-4: 
	Text22$-5: 
	Text22$-6: 
	Text22$-7: 
	Text22$-8: 
	Text22$-9: 
	Other 17: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_7: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_7: 
	County: 
	Text23$-1: 
	Text23$-2: 
	Text23$-3: 
	Text23$-4: 
	Text23$-5: 
	Text23$-6: 
	Text23$-7: 
	Text23$-8: 
	Text23$-9: 
	Check Box12: Yes
	Requested: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_8: 10 year Tax Abatement requested
	Summary  Description of ProjectRow1: Westlake golf course has been closed since 2018.  The target is to purchase and renovate the course to allow recreational golf by August 1st, 2022.  In order to complete this large task / ask, there would be a large investment by the owners to allow renovations of the 131 acres of golf property, course clubhouse, and maintenance facility.  The ROI of this project is 5 years to be a positive on the cost of the course and equipment needed to operate the facility.  19 Greens Repair - $50KSand Bunker Repair - 30KWater hazard / pod Repair - 50KFertilizer / grass treatment - $27KClubhouse Renovation - $50KOutdoor Patio - $10KCourse Maintenance Equipment - $142K36 Golf Carts - $140KIrrigation System Repair - TBD (currently can't test due to weather conditions)
	Expected Outcomes: Course is planned to open on 8/1/22 for Westlake village residents, public, and surrounding schools.  This course will be a preferred course that will attract golfers for the a quality round of golf.  The course will provide golf, pro-shop, gaming, food and beverage.  This course / clubhouse will host events open to the public and Westlake Village residents.  The target is also to provide a home course to the Winnebago and Pecatonica school golf teams for practice and meets.  
	Applicant Name Printed: Steven C. Leathers
	Applicant Name Signature: 
	Date: 2/10/2022


